"TOWN OF ‘f

(S‘ ——————— Town Hall: POB 970, 4117 Oak Ridge Road, Summerfield, NC 27358
ph: 336-643-8655 / fax: 336-643-8654 / www.summerfieldnc.gov

ZONING BOARD AGENDA

JUNE 3,2019, SUMMERFIELD TOWN HALL
6:00 PM ZONING BOARD WORK SESSION

1. Call to order
2. Introductions
3. Consent agenda:
A. Meeting agenda
B. Minutes of 5/20 meeting
4. UDO work session:
A. By-laws (see attached as adopted by Town Council 11/10/2011)
B. Affordable housing
5. Other business (as needed)
6. Public comments on items related to Agenda Items (limited to 3 minutes per speaker)

7. Adjourn

—=———= Council: Mayor Gail Dunham, Mayor Pro-tem Dena Barnes, Dianne Laughlin, John O'Day; Teresa Pegram, Reece Walker Manager: Scott Whitaker e————



TG)WN OF zf

Town Hall: POB 970, 4117 Oak Ridge Road, Summerfield, NC 27358
ph: 336-643-8655 / fax: 336-643-8654 / www.summerfieldnc.gov

ZONING BOARD MINUTES

MAY 20, 2019, 6:00PM, SFD TOWN HALL

Planning and Zoning Board Alternates Staff

Richard (Dick) Feulner Clint Babcock Chris York, Town Planner
George (Jeff) Davis (absent) Clark Doggett Lance Heater Town Clerk
Scott Henson Ryan Moats

Kathy Rooney Frank Ficca (absent)

Trudy Whitacre

Babcock sat in for Davis, who was absent. Next in line: Moats ¢

CONSENT AGENDA

Upon motion by Babcock, seconded by Henson and carried unammous%xe consent agenda was
approved. It consisted of the meeting agenda and the n;st of the 5/6 aﬁ@éfﬁ meetings.

7 ////// /)//
UDO WORK SESSION 7 /f///// , &
, ',////:///._ /

The first item discussed was the Zoning Board by@’s A ﬁ)py 0/--1 bylaws, as adopted by Town
Council on 11/10/2011 was included in thg dat pa o?l York and Whitaker reported on an
internal meeting in which the issue of the ﬁ stitution of & regular member by an alternate
member was discussed with Town At _/" ney William Hif . Ih onsensus was that it was
ve seated when a regular member is absent, even if the
purposes,fﬁowever it was Hill’s opinion that alternates should
mare present. While reviewing the UDO, the Board had adopted
a policy of sub&htutmg alternaté nembers for regi:far members on a rotating basis for the purpose of
providing the alternates with experience on the board and for the purpose of keeping them
informed a‘»’ﬁd engaged. Whitaker al ,/}mmmented that it was Hill’s opinion that when the bylaws
are updated, they should be adopted @8 a stand-alone Town Council ordinance rather than be
mcorporate&inta;he UDO. The pur;)ﬁse of this being that changes to the UDO involve specific
statutory notices and public hearmgS and these would not be necessary if the bylaws were instead
adopted by Counetiby rdmanc&

Moats suggested that Efa}ﬁematés were going to be seated only in the event of a regular member’s
absence, then attendance by alternates should be made optional. Rooney suggested that alternates be
required to attend meetings for one year prior to being seated. Whitacre suggested that a solution
might be for one seat be designated as a rotating alternate seat. Feulner suggested that the issue of
alternates be put aside for the time being and proceeded to conduct a review of the remainder of the
bylaws. There was a discussion regarding Section 10, Public Hearings in which it was suggested
that an amendment be made to allow for questions from the Board at any time. There was a
discussion of amending Section 15, Absentee Policy. Rooney suggested that the attendance
expectation be reduced from 75% to 60%, which would potentially have the effect of increasing
participation by alternates. By a show of hands, the majority of the Board favored keeping the

——=———= Council: Mayor Gail Dunham, Mayor Pro-tem Dena Barnes, Dianne Laughlin, John O'Day; Teresa Pegram, Reece Walker Manager: Scott Whitaker e=————



TOWN OF &

Town Hall: POB 970, 4117 Oak Ridge Road, Summerfield, NC 27358
ph: 336-643-8655 / fax: 336-643-8654 / www.summerfieldnc.gov

attendance expectation at 75%. Under Section 21, the majority of the Board favored requiring
alternate members to attend 50% of the meetings. Feulner stated that the Board would vote on the
full bylaws at the next meeting.

The next item discussed was affordable housing. Included in the agenda packet was a list of
“Guiding Principles for Affordable Housing” which had been drafted by Feulner for the 5/6
meeting. There was a wide-ranging discussion of the issue conducted by the Board. Moats expressed
skepticism over the Town's ability to facilitate the provision of affordable housing, especially given
the absence of public water and sewer service. Babcock suggested ﬂwdwplexes_be allowed in the
RS-40 district. Whitacre suggested that the focus should be on diversity of hﬁ:tmng options rather
than affordability. Rooney voiced support for an expanded town core overk $
higher density housing would be permitted. In response to a question from Feu ner, ,
disclosed that she owned 27 acres within the potential overlay%lcg, Feulner su%ed tt_}ét
Rooney recuse herself from discussion of the issue due to a conflict o
stating that there was no case in front of the Board and that every’ Bo
Summerfield which would be affected by the UDO. Whitaker si.igges '
issue be posed to Town Attorney Hill.

oression that the Town
was legally mandated to ensure the provision of affordable OUSing. Howeyer, he has since learned
that this was not the case, therefore his opinion w:ﬁh;egar& to’ /Z)DQ Committee’ s
recommendations on affordable housing had,changed. Feﬁlner stat
recommendations resulted in part from ret*iew of the Tdﬁn s Comprehenswe Plan. Feulner
suggested that the Board members re-reacf the UDO Com ;
housing in preparation for further discussion of this issue.

OTHER BUSINESS “rone
PUBLIC COMMENTS

Don Weudgiken suggested that the Bﬁard have an attorney present before it entered into discussion
of legakwsuga --

Scott Whltakersuggested the Board ﬁocus on review of the Comprehensive Plan’s Policy Area 6 in
considering the aﬁﬁm:lable housmglﬁsue

Todd Rotruck stated that the expansmn of the town core overlay district would result in increased
population and that cmﬁd increase demands for service.

Gail Dunham suggested 1) the Board put its current practice of rotation of alternate members be put
in writing; 2) that a Board member’s attendance should be considered when being considered for
reappointment; and 3) if higher density were allowed, it could result more staff and higher taxes.
Dunham stated that if affordable housing were defined as homes costing $250,000 or less, homes in
that price range currently existed in Summerfield.

The Board decided to cancel its meeting scheduled for 5/28 and instead scheduled the next meeting
for 6/3 at 6:00pm at Town Hall. This meeting would be with the Board only (consultants not
present).

~————— Council: Mayor Gail Dunham, Mayor Pro-tem Dena Barnes, Dianne Laughlin, John 0'Day, Teresa Pegram, Reece Walker ~ Manager: Scott Whitaker e=—=—



ST,
j » TOWN OF A Town Hall: POB 970, 4117 Oak Ridge Road, Summerfield, NC 27358
UIHLES ) ph: 336-643-8655 / fax: 336-643-8654 / www.summerfieldnc.gov

Upon motion by Babcock, seconded by Rooney and carried unanimously, the meeting was
adjourned at 7:58pm.

Richard Feulner, Chair Lance G. eat%, To“,ra Clerk
//}//// ,é% P 4
.

V.

\\\\\\\\\

—=——— Council: Mayor Gail Dunham, Mayor Pro-tem Dena Barnes, Dianne Laughlin, John 0'Day, Teresa Pegram, Reece Walker Manager: Scott Whitaker e



Summerfield Zoning Board By-Laws
Adopted November 10, 2011

1. Authorization and Purpose

Pursuant to Section 9-2 of the Summerfield Development Ordinance as authorized by NCGS
160A-361 these by-laws are enacted by the Zoning Board (‘the Board”) in order to clarify
statutory rights and procedures.

In the case of any conflict with the Development Ordinance, the Development Ordinance will
take supremacy over the by-laws.

2. Membership

The Board shall be presided over by the Chairperson who shall be elected during the first
meeting of the calendar year. The Board shall also elect a Vice-Chairperson that will preside
over meetings in the event that the Chair is either unable to attend or has a conflict of interest.
Both Officers shall be elected by a majority of the Board, excluding alternates.

The Town Council will strive to appoint members equally representing the various sectors or
districts of the Town, types of residential properties and other criteria as may be expressed by
the Town Council. The Town Council will not discriminate on the basis of gender, ethnic or
socio-economic background. Voting members are required to reside (be residents) within the
Town of Summerfield corporate limits

In order for the Board to carry out its duties and responsibilities, all members and alternates are
expected to attend each meeting. In the event of an absence or of a conflict of interest, the
Board member or alternate should notify the Clerk to the Board or staff as soon as possible.

Section 9-2.2 of the Town of Summerfield Development Ordinance outlines general
membership rules, including the number of members of the Board, and the powers and duties of
the Board.

3. Timing of Decisions

Decisions by the Board shall be made not more than thirty (30) days from the time of the
hearing.

4. Conflicts of Interest

Each Board member is expected to act in a manner to maintain their integrity and
independence, yet be responsive to the interests and needs of the Town, Town Council and
staff.

No Board member shall take part in the hearing consideration or determination of any case in
which they hold a personal or financial interest.

Board members should not attend scheduled open houses.

Board members should not publicly discuss a case prior to a public hearing, through and
including the final disposition of the case by Council (in order to reduce potential future conflicts
should a case be remanded back to the Zoning Board).

No Board member shall vote on any matter deciding an application or appeal unless they
attended the public hearing on that application or appeal.



Board members shall understand their role as an advisory Board and respect the decisions
made by the Town Council and staff.

Board members have legitimate interests (economic, professional, and vocational) of a private
nature. Board members shall not be denied, nor should they deny to other Board members or
citizens the opportunity to acquire, retain, and pursue private interests, economic or otherwise,
except when conflicts with their responsibility to the public cannot be avoided. Board members
must exercise their best judgment to determine when this is the case.

Board members will understand that the actions of their Board may interfere with, or be counter
to, the actions of another committee of the Town Council. When this occurs, it is incumbent
upon the Board members to properly discuss the issues arising from such conflict and be willing
to accept the decisions made by other committees, staff, and Town Council as acting in the best
interest of the citizens of Summerfield.

Board members should conserve the resources of the Town in their charge. They should
employ Town equipment, property, funds and personnel only in legally permissible pursuits and
in a manner that exemplifies excellent stewardship.

Board members have a Fiduciary Duty to the Town and Board, not their own or other private
interests. Any possible fiduciary conflicts shall be disclosed to the Board and the Town Council.

A criminal background check may be performed on any Board applicant.

5. Meetings
The Board shall meet once a month unless canceled by the Chair. The Board shall designate
the fourth (4™) Monday day of the month (unless this conflicts with a holiday) at 7:00 PM as its
regular meeting period. Zoning Board Staff shall be present for each meeting. Staff shall consist
of a member of the Summerfield Planning Department or other designated Zoning Officer.
A quorum of three (3) members of the Board is required to open a public meeting.

When not seated on the Board, alternate members shall not comment during the public meeting
on any matter before the Board.

Procedures
* All meetings shall be open to the public.

e The order of business at meetings shall be at the discretion of the presiding
Chairperson.

e All meetings will be recorded and the recordings shall act as the official minutes
of the meeting.

6. Special Meetings
Special, emergency or recessed meetings of the Board may only be called by the Chair. At

least forty-eight (48) hours notice of the time and place of these special meetings shall be given
by the Chair to each member of the Board.

7. Organizational meeting

At their first meeting of each calendar year, the Board shall elect a Chair and a Vice-Chair.



8. Agenda

The Board's clerk shall prepare a proposed agenda for each meeting. A request to have an
item of business placed on the agenda should be received at least one week before the
meeting. Any Board member may, by a timely request, have an item placed on the proposed
agenda. Background information should be made available, and each Board member shall
receive a copy of the agenda and agenda package and it shall be available for public inspection
when it is distributed to the Board members. The Board shall discuss and revise, as necessary,
the proposed agenda at each meeting.

9. Order of Business
The order of business for each regular meeting shall be as follows:

Introductions
Adoption of the agenda
Consideration of the minutes
Public hearings

o Old business

o New business
Other business
e Adjournment

10. Public Hearings
The format of public hearings shall be as follows:

¢ The Chair will read the case from the agenda.

« Staff will explain the facts of the matter to the Board and, where appropriate, present
graphic displays for the purpose of acquainting the Board with the action being
requested.

The applicant(s) will present argument.

The proponents will present testimony.

The opponents will present testimony.

The Chair may permit rebuttal.

The Board may ask questions of the proponents and opponents.

The Board will render its decision.

e & @ o o o

11. Presiding Officer

The Chair of the Board shall preside at Board meetings if they are present. The Chair will vote
as a regular member. The Vice-Chair will preside over the meeting in the absence of the Chair.

12. House Rules

Anyone may make a motion. Any motion requires a second. Only one motion may be
considered at a time

13. Duty to Vote

A menjber vyho is physically present has a duty to vote. A member may ask to be excused in
cases involving a conflict of interest as defined by law or as outlined in these By-Laws. Failure
to vote will be recorded as an affirmative vote.



14. Quorum

A majority of the Board constitutes a quorum; majority is defined as more than half of the
members of the Board. There are five Board members; therefore a quorum is at least three
members.

15. Absentee Policy

If any Zoning Board member or alternate member is unable to attend a regular or special
meeting of the Board, that member shall notify the Chairperson of their absence at least 24
hours prior to the meeting. Zoning Board members are expected to attend at least 75 percent of
regular and special meetings of the Board.

16. Vote

The vote of a majority of those members present shall be sufficient to decide matters before the
Board, provided a quorum is present; provided however, that as to zoning map amendments,
the provisions of Section 3-12 of the Town of Summerfield Development Ordinance are met.

17. Minutes

Full and accurate account of the Board proceedings shall be kept. Minutes shall be a general
account so that a person not in attendance would have a reasonable understanding of what
transpired; the official minutes are a CD recording of the minutes. Minutes shall be open to
inspection by the public. Minutes shall include each motion and the results of each vote.

18. By-Laws may be amended

These rules of Board procedure may be amended from time-to-time by the Zoning Board
members and a majority vote.

19. Robert’s Rules of Order

The Board will generally refer to Robert's Rules of Order Newly Revised during meetings.

20. Compensation

Board members will not be compensated for their time while serving on the Board.
Reimbursement for expenses directly attributed to activities of the Board such as travel,
attendance at out-of-town meetings, and reimbursements for purchases made as part of an
ongoing project or event are allowed following the established reimbursement procedures for
the Town of Summerfield.

21. Alternate Members

Alternate members of the Board shall be called on to participate in those meetings and hearings
at which one or more regular members are absent or are unable to participate in hearing a case
because of financial or other interest. Regular members, on receiving notice of a meeting they
cannot attend or upon learning that they will be unable to participate in a meeting, shall promptly
notify the clerk that they are unable to attend or participate. Alternate members shall have the
same powers and duties as regular members. To the extent practicable, the alternates, when
called upon to participate because of a regular member's absence, shall alternate their
participation between each other.



When an alternate member attends a meeting and is called upon to participate because of a
regular member’'s absence, that alternate member shall retain their “regular” status should the
absent regular member enter the meeting after the public hearing has been opened. The
regular member who appears after the opening of the hearing will take on “alternate” status for
the duration of that portion of the meeting. If an alternate member is called on to participate in
the Board’'s consideration of an item from which the regular Board member has been excused
due to conflict or otherwise, then the alternate shall relinquish their seat upon conclusion of that
matter.

Alternates should not ask questions of clarification from the audience.



Summerfield Guiding Principles for Affordable Housing
DRAFT

1. we will include a separate subsection in Article 6 entitled “Affordable
Housing”

2. we will make every effort to implement all affordable housing
recommendations of the UDO Committee

3. affordable housing can have many aspects such as homeless shelters or
transition housing. Summerfield’s goal for affordable housing is to increase
housing options for public servants, young families and those wishing to
downsize yet remain in our community

4. the town will not financially subsidize housing in any fashion

5. the town will attempt to provide some form of non-financial incentive(s) to
encourage construction of new affordable housing

6. developers receiving an incentive for the construction of affordable housing
will not be required to sell the affordable housing “units” to someone with
a specified annual household income threshold

7. affordable housing units will be designed to be comparable with the
surrounding housing

8. when affordable housing units are to be constructed in a new subdivision,
they are to be distributed throughout the subdivision and not located in a
separate section

9. in a new subdivision, twin homes are acceptable providing they are
designed to be compatible with neighboring single housing units

10. to qualify for an affordable housing “unit incentive” at least 15% of the
units in a new subdivision must qualify as affordable in Summerfield

11. an increased density incentive of XX% will be offered to encourage
affordable housing in new subdivision providing soil conditions are
adequate to provide an acceptable supply of safe drinking water and
provide a safe sewage system

12. An addition XX% of the set aside open space area may be used for septic
and well in construction qualifying as affordable. Guilford County
Department of Health will be responsible for determining whether site
conditions are adequate to address the proposed new development

13. a town core expansion overlay will be developed solely to encourage
affordable housing construction. A density of XX units per acre will be
permitted providing soil conditions are adequate for safe well and septic as
determined by the Guilford County Department of Health



14. no open space set aside requirements will be in the town core overlay
district for qualifying affordable housing units

15.affordable housing is defined as a housing unit that a family or individual
could afford if they had an annual income of at least 80% of the median
Summerfield household of $95,500

16. the median income for Summerfield will be recalculated from time to time
on a schedule established by town council but no more frequently than
once per calendar year

17. to calculate the affordable housing threshold, Summerfield will use the 28-
36 percent rule for determine the pricing target for affordable housing and
creditworthy and purchasers must have enough funds for the required
down payment. https://www.investopedia.com/terms/t/twenty-eight-
thirty-six-rule.asp

Based on my inexperienced assessment and the figures provided by McGill, an
affordable housing unit would need to be priced in the $250,000 range.



